

Shawnee County Girls Softball Association CONSTITUTION



Lake Shawnee
Fastpitch Softball

ARTICLE 1

GENERAL ORGANIZATION

□ Section I

- Name — This association shall be known as The Shawnee County Girls Softball Association, Inc. (SCGSA).

□ Section II

- Incorporation — This Corporation was incorporated in February 1966.

□ Section III

- Fiscal Year — This Corporation shall operate on a fiscal year which shall be from January 1 through December 31.

ARTICLE 2

AFFILIATION

□ Section I

- This organization shall now be and is hereby affiliated with the United States Specialty Sports Association: provided that such affiliation shall not interfere with the operation or policies of the Corporation.

ARTICLE 3

PURPOSE

□ Section I

- The SCGSA is a non-profit organization committed to providing girls ages 6 to 18 years the opportunity to play competitive fastpitch softball as an organized recreational activity with the goal of promoting good sportsmanship , developing individual skills, encouraging friendships and providing leadership opportunities.

Self-funded through member registration and donations, SCGSA is run strictly by volunteers and is affiliated with USSSA Fastpitch, the North American Fastpitch Association and Kansas Amateur Softball Association.

ARTICLE 4

MEMBERSHIP

□ Section I

- Membership in the Shawnee County Girls Softball Association, Inc. shall be open to any person(s) or organization(s) interested in furthering the purpose of the Shawnee County Girls Softball Association, Inc., as stated in Article 3, Section I, of this Constitution. Membership is defined as a team coach or manager as listed on that team's official roster (limited to one manager, one head coach and one assistant coach), a member of the Corporation's Board of Directors or any person(s) who contributes significant monetary funds (as defined by the Board of Directors) directly to the Corporation. "Membership" may be referred to from this point forward in this Constitution as "members."



ARTICLE 5

FEES

- Section I
 - Annual fees shall be provided for in the Bylaws of this Corporation.



ARTICLE 6

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

□ Section I

- The government of this organization shall be vested in the Board of Directors consisting of the President, and six (6) Directors, seven (7) Assistant Directors and one (1) Player Representative.

ARTICLE 7

ANNUAL MEETING

□ Section I

- There shall be two annual meetings held by this Corporation. In the month of February and August, in the county of Shawnee, state of Kansas, upon written notice by the Director of Recording to each member at least ten (10) days before said meeting, specifying the time, place and purpose of the meeting.

ARTICLE 8

BYLAWS

□ Section I

- The Board of Directors by a 2/3 vote of the board members present shall prescribe suitable Bylaws not to become effective until ratified by a majority vote of the members present at any regular meeting.



ARTICLE 9

□ Section I

- This Constitution may be amended by a 2/3 vote of the members present at any annual meeting.



ARTICLE 10

- Section I
 - The passage and approval of this Constitution repeals any previously existing constitution.

Shawnee County Girls Softball Association BYLAWS



Lake Shawnee
Fastpitch Softball



ARTICLE 1

GOVERNMENT AND BUSINESS

- Section I – Board of Directors
 - The Board of Directors shall have control and manage the property of this Association.



ARTICLE 1 Continued – GOVERNMENT AND BUSINESS

□ Section II – Powers and Duties

- A. The Board of Directors shall have control and manage the property of this Association.
- B. The Board of Directors shall determine and designate the committees necessary and proper to fulfill the objectives and purpose of this Corporation.
- C. The Board of Directors may appoint such special committees and the chairman thereof as the Board may deem necessary.
- D. The Board of Directors shall meet at least once each month on prearranged dates to be fixed by the Board.
- E. The Board of Directors shall by a majority vote of the Board, remove any officer failing to perform his/her duties as set forth in the Bylaws of this Corporation.



ARTICLE 1 Continued – GOVERNMENT AND BUSINESS

□ Section III – Quorum

- The majority of the membership of the Board of Directors at any special meeting shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, and a lesser number shall adjourn the meeting until a quorum is present.



ARTICLE 1 Continued – GOVERNMENT AND BUSINESS

- Section IV – Voting (at Board of Directors Meeting)
 - Each member of the Board of Directors present shall be entitled to one vote and the majority of the votes cast at any one meeting at which a quorum is present determines the action of the Board except where otherwise specifically provided in the Bylaws. Tie votes at a board meeting will result in the defeat of a motion.



ARTICLE 1 Continued – GOVERNMENT AND BUSINESS

□ Section V – Minutes

- The Director of Recording of this Corporation shall serve as Secretary of the Board of Directors except when absent at which time the President shall appoint an acting secretary. The Director of Recording shall keep the minutes of all Board meetings and transcribe such minutes to be preserved as part of the permanent records of this Corporation.

ARTICLE 1 Continued – GOVERNMENT AND BUSINESS

□ Section VI – Officers

- A. The officers of this organization shall be the President, Director of Scheduling, Director of Recording, Director of Tournaments, Director of Grounds and Facilities, Director of Funds, Director of Concessions, two (2) Asst. Directors of Tournaments, five (5) Asst. Directors of Grounds and Facilities, and one (1) Player Representative.
- B. By a majority vote of the membership present at a general meeting, all incumbent officers whose term of office has expired may retain their respective offices.



Officers Continued

- C. Vacancies created by resignations from the board will be appointed by the President, and approved by the Board of Directors, until the term of the office has expired.
- D. Terms of office are as follows: President – elected to 2-year term at August general meeting of odd numbered years. Directors and Assistant Directors – elected to 2-year terms at August general meeting after the new President has been elected and installed. The Dir. of Scheduling, Dir. of Tournaments, three Asst. Dir. of Grounds and Facilities and Dir. of Recording will be elected on odd number years. The Dir. of Grounds and Facilities, Dir. of Funds, Dir. of Concessions, two (2) Asst. Dir. of Tournaments, and two Asst. Dir. of Grounds and Facilities will be elected on even number years.



Officers Continued

- E. At the July Board of Directors meeting, Directors, Assistant Directors and President whose terms expire may choose to submit their name to the nominating committee for re-election to their current position or any other vacant position on the Board. Directors and Assistant Directors who still have one year remaining on their term may select any of the vacated Director or Assistant Director positions which have not been filled by an incumbent who is seeking re-election to their current position. These changes must meet with the approval of the current Board of Directors. The remaining vacant positions would be submitted to the nominating committee along with members seeking re-election.



ARTICLE 1 Continued – GOVERNMENT AND BUSINESS

□ Section VII – Nomination Committee

- A. The President shall appoint, subject to the approval of the Board of Directors, a nominating committee of not less than five (5) members, one being a board member not up for re-election, and such appointment shall be made not less than thirty (30) days prior to the annual meeting.
- B. The nominating committee shall select at least one (1) nominee for each office to be elected. The committee shall advise all members in writing of the nominees selected at least ten (10) days prior to the annual meeting.
- C. The nominating committee shall have the power and authority to conduct and supervise the annual election of this Corporation subject to such rules and regulations as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors.



ARTICLE 1 Continued – GOVERNMENT AND BUSINESS

- Section VIII – Nominations from the Floor
 - At the annual meeting in August any nomination may be made from the floor provided approval of said nominee has been secured before the nomination is entered.

ARTICLE 1 Continued – GOVERNMENT AND BUSINESS

□ Section IX – Voting

- A. Each team manager will be allowed one vote on all matters providing that the manager participated in the program as a manager the previous year.
- B. If a manager cannot attend a scheduled meeting he/she may, if he/she chooses, appoint a team representative to represent his/her voting rights. In his/her absence, it is the manager's responsibility to notify the Board of Directors President of his/her team voting representative prior to the meeting.
- C. Any elected person shall have one vote provided they are not qualified to vote under paragraph A hereof.
- D. Voting shall be as prescribed by the presiding officer.



ARTICLE 1 Continued – GOVERNMENT AND BUSINESS

- Section X – Determination of Election
 - The nominee receiving the most votes for that office shall be elected.



ARTICLE 1 Continued – GOVERNMENT AND BUSINESS

□ Section XI – Duties of Officers

A. President

1. Serves as the chief executive officer of the Corporation and shall preside at all meetings of the Association.
2. Under the general supervision and direction of the Board, shall direct and supervise the affairs of the Corporation, reporting his/her activities to the Board at each of its meetings.
3. Fill all vacancies by appointment, subject to the approval and confirmation by the Board of Directors; vacancies on the Board shall be filled until the next general election.



Duties of Officers Continued – President

4. Appoint delegations or special committees, and the chairperson thereof to represent the Corporation at any convention meeting or assembly; provided however, that such delegations or special committees shall follow any instruction given by the Board of Directors.
5. Handle, or have his/her appointee handle, all requests for the use of the diamonds after the season is over and secure hold-harmless agreements whenever necessary.



Duties of Officers Continued

B. Director of Scheduling

1. Responsible for the scheduling of all league games and the rescheduling of makeup games.
2. Responsible for the scheduling of all umpires for league and makeup games, through contact with the Umpire in Chief.



Duties of Officers Continued – Director of Scheduling

3. Receive and maintain all correspondence pertaining to playing personnel, including all additions to rosters after the start of the season. Note: Additions to a team's roster may be accepted by the officer-in-charge during the season and forwarded to the Director of Scheduling.
4. In the absence or incapacity of the President perform his/her duties. In the event of a vacancy in the office of the President, he/she shall assume and exercise all duties and powers incidental to the office until the vacancy is filled as provided in these Bylaws.
5. Responsible for purchasing trophies and awards at the end of the league season.



Duties of Officers Continued

C. Director of Recording

1. Take and keep permanent records of the minutes of all general and special meetings of this Corporation.
2. Give notice of all meetings of this Corporation as required by these Bylaws.
3. Prepare and mail all Corporation correspondence as requested by the Board of Directors, including league packets.
4. Custodian of all official records of this Corporation.
5. Authority to purchase supplies needed for recording after notifying the President of need and amount. This excludes all equipment purchases.
6. Responsible for scheduling the diamonds for practices and tryouts.



Duties of Officers Continued

D. Director of Tournaments

1. Responsible for the organization of all tournaments.
2. Assists the assigned Tournament Director of all affiliations in all tournaments.
3. Must be present or have Asst. Director(s) of Tournaments present or someone acting as Director of Tournaments during all tournaments.
4. Responsible for publicity and advertising for all tournaments.



Duties of Officers Continued

E. Assistant Directors of Tournaments

1. Assists the Dir. of Tournaments as requested.
2. Responsible to see that scorekeepers and announcers, as deemed necessary, have been assigned for all affiliated qualifying tournament games.
3. Responsible for publicity and advertising of all tournaments.



Duties of Officers Continued – Assistant Directors of Tournaments

5. Responsible for the organizing and printing of all documents for tournaments.
6. Responsible for ordering awards for distribution at all qualifying tournaments, excluding championship tournaments.



Duties of Officers Continued

F. Director of Grounds & Facilities

1. Responsible for maintaining excellent condition of all Association diamonds.
2. Responsible for hiring and supervision of groundskeepers at Association diamonds.
3. Responsible for the inspection and suggested improvement of all diamonds used by the Association.
4. Responsible for infield maintenance, dragging, blading, installing drop downs, home plate, pitching rubbers, bases and marble dust.
5. Responsible for outfield maintenance, fertilizing, seeding, filling in holes, watering and mowing all areas.



Duties of Officers Continued – Director of Grounds & Facilities

6. Maintenance of tractor, mower, blade and other equipment.
7. Purchasing of home plates, pitching rubbers, bases and marble dust, etc.
8. Responsible for the overall grounds, buildings and facilities, and equipment at all Association diamonds.
9. Responsible for maintenance of lights on diamonds and grounds, maintenance of buildings, press boxes, fences around complex and P.A. system.
10. Authority to purchase supplies as needed for maintenance after notifying the President of need and amount. This excludes all major purchases.



Duties of Officers Continued

G. Assistant Directors of Grounds & Facilities

1. Assists Director of Grounds and Facilities as requested.
2. Responsible for maintenance of dugouts, fence around complex, bleachers, scoreboards and scoring tables.
3. Responsible for the care of trees and shrubs.
4. Responsible for arranging for trash pickup at SCGSA grounds Lake Shawnee.



Duties of Officers Continued

H. Director of Concessions

1. Responsible for hiring and supervision of concession workers and gatekeepers at all Association diamonds.
2. Purchasing of all concession supplies needed at Association diamonds.
3. Schedule concession workers and gatekeepers for both league and tournaments as needed.



Duties of Officers Continued

I. Director of Funds

1. Under the supervision, direction and control of the Board of Directors, shall have custody of and shall be charged with the safekeeping of all funds and property and shall have charge of the financial transactions of the Corporation and shall keep adequate books and permanent records thereof
2. Collect all fees, to exclude protest fees.
3. Submit a written detailed report of the financial affairs of the Corporation, including a true and correct accounting of all monies of the Corporation at the first meeting of the Board of Directors after February 1st. In addition, he/she shall make such other reports and accounting at such times and meetings as the Board of Directors shall direct and require.



Duties of Officers Continued – Director of Funds

4. Disburse funds or dispose of the property belonging to the Corporation only at the express direction of the Board of Directors and all checks be over the joint signature of the Director of Funds and the President.
5. Before taking office, shall furnish at the expense of the Corporation a good and sufficient bond in such form and with such sureties and of such an amount as shall meet the requirements and approval of the Board. Which bond shall be conditioned upon his/her true, faithful, and correct custody and accounting for all funds and property of the Corporation coming into his/her hand and the delivery of the same to his/her successor.
6. Is in charge of the Association budget.



Duties of Officers Continued

J. All Officers

1. Have the authority and responsibility to resolve any or all problems that may arise at a league game and/or tournament.
2. Take turns serving as an Officer In Charge at SCGSA and check in 20 minutes before the first game of league play and/or tournaments to concession stand.
3. Observe league umpiring and submit any recommendations to umpire-in-chief for changes or improvements.
4. Will take complaints and compliments about umpires from managers to the umpire-in-chief.
5. Will take any complaints or compliments about managers from umpires to the Board of Directors.



ARTICLE 1 Continued – GOVERNMENT AND BUSINESS

□ Section XII – Vacancies

- A. A vacancy shall automatically occur when any officer shall establish residence outside of the Association school district (Shawnee County). That Board member shall be suspended from membership on the Board under these Bylaws
- B. A vacancy shall automatically occur when any officer resigns upon acceptance thereof by the Board of Directors.
- C. A vacancy shall automatically occur when any officer is appointed to any other office and a vacancy shall occur at the time of the appointment.
- D. When a vacancy exists in the office of the President, it shall be filled within fifteen (15) days from the date of vacancy for the unexpired term by the Board of Directors in accordance with these Bylaws.

ARTICLE 1 Continued – GOVERNMENT AND BUSINESS

□ Section XIII – Meetings

- A. Annual Meeting – the annual meeting for the election of officers of this Corporation shall be held in the month of August of each year upon a date established by the Board of Directors.

A general meeting to register teams and address any issues concerning the upcoming season will be conducted in the month of February of each year. The Director of Recording shall notify each member of this Association of such meeting at least ten (10) days prior thereto to each member's last known address as shown by the records of the Corporation.

- B. Special Meeting – Special meetings may be held as may be determined by the Board of Directors

ARTICLE 1 Continued – GOVERNMENT AND BUSINESS

□ Section XIV – Recall

- A. Persons Subject – All officers and members of the Board of Directors shall be subject to recall.
- B. Method – recall shall be initiated by filing a petition designated “Petition for Special Business Meeting for Recall” with the Director of Recording of the Corporation, which petition must be signed by at least 25 active members in good standing of the Corporation, not less than three of who must be Directors. The Director of Recording shall call a special business meeting to be held within 20 days after receipt of the petition and give all members of the Corporation notice of said meeting at least ten days prior to date thereof. If 2/3 of the members present at such meeting, voting by secret ballot vote for recall, the Officer or Director named in the petition shall be thereby be recalled and the officer or position forfeited and vacated. In the event that the Director of Recording is recalled, the Director of Funds shall perform such duties.

ARTICLE 2

LEAGUES

□ Section I – Leagues

A. Girls **Fastpitch** Leagues

1. Instructional – 6 to 8 years of age
2. 10 & Under
3. 12 & Under
4. 14 & Under
5. 16 & Under
6. 18 & Under

Currently, a player's age is considered to be her age on December 31 of the year preceding the season. Note: Instructional players must be **5 years of age before May 1** of the current season.



ARTICLE 2 Continued – LEAGUES

□ Section II – Player Eligibility

- A. A team member can only play on one SCGSA fastpitch team per age division during the season.

ARTICLE 3

FEES

□ Section I – Fees

A. Team Fees

1. Instructional League – \$650.00 per team Summer season; \$150 per team Fall season (based on a 4-game schedule and subject to change relative to participation). To include Instructional Gold (6-9 years) and Instructional Silver (9 years and younger).
2. 18 & Under and 16 & Under \$800.00; all other age divisions \$1200.00 per team for Summer season league play. All aforementioned age divisions \$500.00 per team for Fall season.



Fees Continued

B. ~~USSSA-ASA~~ Fee

1. The team registration fee set forth by the USSSA shall be included as part of team fees.

C. Earnest Fee

1. A \$250.00 earnest fee or credit for 10 hours of ADULT WORK (in not less than 2 hour increments) must be turned in by each team at the February General meeting. The \$250.00 earnest fee paid by those teams who have not completed their work hours will be applied to their team's league fee, provided that they complete their work hours by the date determined by the Board. Any team that does not put in their work hours will forfeit the earnest money and will be required to pay the full amount of the league fees on the date determined by the Board.

ARTICLE 3 Continued – FEES

- Section II – League Protest Fees
 - A \$50.00 cash protest fee must accompany any protest involving league play.
- Section IV – Tournament Protest Fees
 - A. A \$100.00 lodging a protest during invitational and qualifying tournament play.
 - B. All fees for a team are the responsibility of the manager and if fees are not paid on the due date or before, a team will not be allowed to play league games until such fees are paid.

ARTICLE 3 Continued – FEES

- Section V – Due Dates for Fees
 - A. Team entry fee and team roster will be due by a date designated by the Board. Roster must have a minimum of eleven (11) players by 3:00 P.M. on a date designated by the Board.
 - B. All players added to a team roster after the beginning of league play, will not be eligible to play until a player-add form and the appropriate player registration fee have been submitted to the Director of Scheduling.

ARTICLE 3 Continued – FEES

□ Section VI – Fees Paid to Whom

- A. All fees must be paid directly to the Director of Funds, or his/her assistant, with the exception of:
 - 1. Fees set forth in Article 3, Section IV and V of the league Bylaws which shall be paid to the chairman of the protest board.
 - 2. Any fees set forth in Article 3, Section I, paid after the official team registration date shall be paid to the Director of Scheduling.

ARTICLE 4

DRESS CODE

- Section I – Objective
 - To set forth the definition of uniform and responsibility of implementation of uniform regulation as they apply to the Shawnee County Girls' Softball Association, Inc. and the USSSA rule.
- Section II – All Leagues
 - Must conform to the USSSA rules for team dress.



ARTICLE 4 Continued – Dress Code

- Section III – Coaches and Managers
 - May wear coaches shorts. Cutoffs are not allowed on the playing field. Shoes must be worn at all times.
- Section IV – Jewelry
 - USSSA rules will apply. Left up to umpire discretion.
- Section V – Headwear
 - All USSSA rules concerning headgear will be followed during league play. If headgear is worn, it will be worn in the appropriate manner. Handkerchiefs do not qualify as headbands and cannot be worn.
- Section VI – Enforcement
 - Team dress rules will be strictly enforced by the umpire.

ARTICLE 5

PROTEST

□ Section I – Judgment

- Protests shall not be received or considered if they are based solely on a decision involving the accuracy of judgment on the part of the umpire.

□ Section II – Received

- Protests that shall be received and considered are:
 1. Misinterpretation of a playing rule.
 2. Failure of an umpire to apply the correct rule to a given situation.
 3. Failure to impose the correct penalty for a given violation.

ARTICLE 5 Continued – PROTEST

- Section III – Notification of Intent to Protest
 - The coach filing the protest must notify the umpire and official scorekeeper before the next pitch that the game is being played under protest. The scorekeeper will note the time of the protest in the scorebook.
The manager or coach of the protesting team will immediately (before the next pitch) notify the umpire and the opponent that the game is being continued under protest. The exact time and inning must be recorded. All concerned should take notice of the conditions surrounding the making of the decision to aid in determination if necessary.
- Section IV – Formal Protest Must Contain
 - A. Date, time and place of game.
 - B. Names of the umpire and scorekeeper.
 - C. The rule and section of the official rules or local rules under which the protest is being made.
 - D. The decision and conditions surrounding the making of the decision.
 - E. All essential facts involved in the matter protested.

ARTICLE 5 Continued – PROTEST

□ Section V – Protest Must be in Writing

- A written protest sent by certified mail (no telephone contact) and the \$50.00 cash protest fee must be made within 24 hours of the time recorded in the official scorebook to the head of the protest committee. When the head of the protest committee receives the written protest and the \$50.00 cash protest fee, he/she will then call a meeting of the committee to review the protest. Failure of the protest committee to act on the protest will make your protest valid. Managers of both teams and the Director of Scheduling will be notified within 48 hours after the decision is made by the protest committee as to the decision.

A volunteer protest committee will be formed at the February General Meeting before each season; seven (7) volunteer coaches, one Board member and one Umpire In Charge will be placed in a pool to be drawn from and assigned to judge each protest.

ARTICLE 5 Continued – PROTEST

□ Section VI – Decision

- The decision made on a protested game may result in one of the following:
 1. The protest is found invalid and the game score stands as played. The \$50.00 cash protest fee will be put into the Corporation treasury.
 2. When a protest is allowed for misinterpretation of a playing rule, the game is replayed from the point at which the incorrect decision was made with the decision corrected. The \$50.00 protest fee will be returned to the protesting manager.



ARTICLE 5 Continued – PROTEST

- Section VII – Tournaments
 - During invitational and qualifying tournament play, protest shall be settled on the spot before play may be resumed. There will be a \$100.00 cash protest fee which must be paid on the spot to the Tournament Director.

Protest validity is determined by the Tournament Director, Umpire in Charge and at least one additional member of the Board of Directors (either onsite or by phone).

ARTICLE 6

BIRTH CERTIFICATE

□ Section I – All Leagues

- A. A copy of each girl's birth certificate or certified proof of birth must be in each manager's possession before the beginning of each **game season**. When the age of a girl is questioned, ~~the manager, within 72 hours,~~ will present proof of the questioned girls age to the **Officer in Charge immediately** ~~Association's Asst. Director of Recording~~. Failure to do so will mean forfeiture of **that** ~~all game played and the possibility of the team being dropped from the league.~~

The team manager will then have 72 hours to provide proof of questioned players age by providing her birth certificate or risk forfeiture of all previously played games utilizing that player and said player shall not be allowed to play at SCGSA for the remainder of that season.

- B. In the case of Notification of Roster Change, resulting in the addition of a player, a copy of the player's birth certificate must be presented along with the Notification of Roster Change.

ARTICLE 7

SPORTSMANSHIP

□ Section I – Sportsmanship

- A. Poor sportsmanship of managers, fans and girls will not be tolerated.
 - 1. No taunting ~~razzing~~ or yelling at the other team. Hey batter swing will be allowed as long as no player's name is used.
 - 2. Managers and girls alike should learn to be not only gracious winners, but gracious losers.
 - 3. There will be no arguing with the umpires. Managers may call time and ask a question, in a gentleman/lady-like manner, only when an infraction of the rules is involved, not on an umpire's judgment call.
- B. All managers are hereby notified that if we have one valid complaint against their team concerning sportsmanship (as determined by the Board), the team will forfeit all of their games and will be dropped from the league. This applies if you have only played one game. If this happens none of the girls on the team will be eligible for any other league play for the remainder of the year. (You are reminded - no refunds after the start of play and that this applies to all leagues.)

ARTICLE 8

MANAGERS

- Section I – Agreement Statement
 - A. All managers must sign a manager’s agreement statement, agreeing to abide by the Constitution, Bylaws and League Rules of the SCGSA, Inc. The agreement must be signed by the managers and initialed by a Corporation officer.
 - B. Any team having present or past financial obligations to the Association will not be allowed to play any games until the obligation has been fulfilled. Team fees are the responsibility of the team manager.

ARTICLE 9

UMPIRES

- Section I – Qualifications
 - All league umpires are required to attend an umpires certified program and to pass a test with an 85% score before they are allowed to umpire league or SCGSA tournament games.

ARTICLE 10

ETHICAL BEHAVIOR

□ Section I – Policy

- A. It shall be the policy of the Shawnee County girls Softball Association that no one shall be eligible to serve as a manager, coach, scorekeeper, or work within a team structure in any other capacity, in practice, meetings, fundraising, league games or any tournaments, nor shall anyone serve on the board of directors, be employed by the SCGSA, or volunteer in any capacity who has:
1. Been found guilty of any felony in the past 5 years;
 2. Ever been found guilty of any crime, whether misdemeanor or felony, that involves the use of a weapon, child abuse or domestic abuse;
 3. Been found guilty of any crime (which may include but is not limited to, violence or threat of violence) that the board of directors of SCGSA deems to be a threat or poses a potential of danger to its members, volunteers, employees and players.
- B. Anyone charged with any of the above listed offenses while currently serving as a board member, manager, coach, scorekeeper, volunteer or employee shall be suspended until the resolution of the situation. Upon the resolution of the charges, the appropriate board policies shall apply.